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I.
BY THE COMMISSION:


A.
Statement

 
This matter comes before the Commission for considera-tion of exceptions to Decision No. R98-41 (“Recommended Deci-sion”) filed by Commission Staff (“Staff”) and Respondent Golden A & B Limousine, Inc. (“Respondent” or “Golden A & B”).  In the Recommended Decision, the Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”) con-cluded that Respondent had violated various provisions of the Commission’s Motor Carrier Safety Rules (“Rules”), 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (“CCR”) 723-15, but that Staff had failed to prove violations of other provisions of the Rules, and, there-fore, these particular allegations should be dismissed.  The Recommended Decision concludes that Respondent should be assessed civil penalties in the amount of $2,000.
  Both Staff and Respon-dent have filed exceptions to the Recommended Decision.  Now being duly advised in the premises, we will deny all exceptions and affirm the Recommended Decision in all respects.

 
B.
Discussion

Staff Exceptions

a. Staff takes exception to two rulings in the Recommended Decision.  First, Staff objects to the ALJ’s recom-mendation of dismissal as to counts 17-20 in the Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (“CPAN”).  Counts 17-20 alleged that Golden A & B used a driver who had not furnished an annual list of traffic violations, in contravention of 47 C.F.R. § 391.11(b)(8).
  The ALJ recommended dismissal of these counts on the grounds that Respondent produced at hearing a motor vehicle record “which con-tains the required information” (Recommended Decision, page 5), and which was apparently produced to Staff on the day it con-ducted the annual audit and safety inspection of Golden A & B.  Staff points out that § 391.11(b)(8) mandates that the motor vehicle carrier require each driver to prepare and furnish it with a list of all traffic violations of which the driver has been convicted during the preceding 12 months.  According to Staff, the production of a Colorado motor vehicle record for a driver does not constitute compliance with the regulation.  Staff requests reversal of the Recommended Decision on this point and assessment of an additional $200 penalty against Respondent.

b. We agree with Staff’s interpretation of § 391.11(b)(8).  However, the record before us, particularly since neither Staff nor Respondent produced a copy of the tran-script of the hearing before the ALJ, is inadequate to permit us to assess the additional penalty requested by Staff.  Section 40-6-113(4), C.R.S., provides that, in the absence of a copy of the transcript of the evidentiary hearing, the findings of fact in a Recommended Decision shall be conclusively presumed to be “com-plete and accurate.”  While we agree that the mere production of a copy of a motor vehicle record does not constitute compliance with § 391.11(b)(8), we are unable to conclude that the record before us is sufficient to support the affirmative finding that Respondent violated the regulation in this case.  Therefore, Staff’s exceptions on this point will be denied.

c. Staff’s second argument is that the ALJ erred in dismissing counts 49-52 of the CPAN.  These counts alleged that Respondent failed to maintain a copy of an employee’s driver’s license in its records.  The ALJ recommended dismissal on the grounds that Respondent produced a copy of the subject driver’s license at hearing.  Apparently, the ALJ found that the license was in Golden A & B’s possession on the date of Staff’s inspection, but was unavailable to Staff due to recent flooding at Respondent’s premises.  Staff excepts to the ALJ’s recom-mendation contending that production of the driver’s license at hearing does not constitute compliance with the regulation (47 C.F.R. § 391.51(c)(4)) which requires the carrier to maintain the driver’s license in its records.  Staff suggests imposition of an additional $200 penalty upon Golden A & B.

d. Again, we will deny Staff’s exception.  We note that the Recommended Decision did not simply hold that a carrier could comply with the regulation by producing a driver’s license at the hearing concerning a civil penalty assessment.  Rather, the ALJ apparently concluded that the driver’s license was in Respondent’s possession on the date of inspection, even if it was unavailable to Staff for other reasons (i.e., due to recent flooding).  We presume that the ALJ’s findings are com-plete and accurate, and, on the basis of that presumption, deny Staff’s request to impose additional penalties upon Respondent.

C.
Respondent’s Exceptions

1. Respondent excepts to most portions of the Recom-mended Decision in which the ALJ found violations of the Rules.
  We will deny all of these exceptions inasmuch as Respondent invariably seeks to challenge the ALJ’s factual findings.
  For example, the ALJ specifically found that Alia Salihi was serving as a driver for Golden A & B.  In making that finding, the ALJ expressly rejected Respondent’s claim that Alia Salihi was not serving as a driver.  Recommended Decision, page 3.
  Many of Respondent’s exceptions dispute the factual finding that Alia Salihi served as a driver for Golden A & B.  Since we must accept the Recommended Decision’s findings as complete and accu-rate, we will deny Respondent’s exceptions in their entirety.

2. On March 16, 1998, Respondent submitted a pleading which is apparently a response to Staff’s exceptions.
  Under the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 4 CCR 723-1, Rule 22(b), this response was untimely.  However, on our own motion, we will extend the time for filing a response to Staff’s exceptions and will permit this response to be filed.

II.
order

A.
The Commission Orders That:

1. The exceptions to Decision No. R98-41 filed by Commission Staff are denied.

2. The exceptions to Decision No. R98-41 filed by Golden A & B Limousine, Inc., are denied.

3. The time for filing a response to Staff’s excep-tions by Golden A & B Limousine, Inc., is extended to March 16, 1998.

4. Within ten days of the effective date of a final Commission order in this docket, Golden A & B Limousine, Inc., shall pay the sum of $2,000 for the violations alleged on lines 1-16, 21-24, 41, 45, and 53-60 of Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 97-E-C-7.

5. The 20-day period provided for in § 40-6-114(1), C.R.S., within which to file applications for rehearing, reargu-ment, or reconsideration begins on the first day following the Mailed Date of this Decision.

6. This Order is effective on its Mailed Date.

B.
ADOPTED IN COMMISSIONERS’ WEEKLY MEETING March 25, 
1998.

THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO



ROBERT J. HIX
________________________________



R. BRENT ALDERFER
________________________________

Commissioners

COMMISSIONER VINCENT MAJKOWSKI ABSENT BUT CONCURRING.
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____________________

Bruce N. Smith

Director
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� In the Civil Penalty Assessment Notice (“CPAN”) initiating this proceeding, CPAN No. 97-E-C-7, Staff sought civil penalties in the amount of $3,800.


�  As noted in the Recommended Decision, all references to regulations in the Code of Federal Regulations are to those regulations existing as of July, 1993.


� In its exceptions, Respondent appears to concede that it did violate the Rules with respect to some counts in the CPAN such as counts 9-12, 41, and 53-56.


� The above discussion points out that the record before us (i.e., no transcript of the hearing before the ALJ was furnished to the Commission) is such that we must presume that the Recommended Decision’s findings are complete and accurate.  See § 40-6-113(4), C.R.S.


� The Recommended Decision at one point mistakenly refers to “Alia Bashir” in rejecting Respondent’s contention.  Recommended Decision, page 3, paragraph D.  However, the Recommended Decision is clear that the ALJ accepted Staff’s contention that “Alia Salihi” served as a driver for Golden A & B.


� Respondent also attempts to offer new evidence as part of its exceptions, such as a letter from a Columbia-HealthOne clinic.  (This letter is apparently intended to dispute Staff’s claim that a driver for Golden A & B had not been physically qualified in the last 24 months.)  The letter. on its face, appears to have been faxed to Respondent on January 26, 1998, after the date of the hearing in this matter.  Since this document was not offered at hearing, it would be impermissible for us to consider it for purposes of ruling on Respondent’s exceptions.


� The pleading is actually entitled “Exceptions to Decision No. R98-110-I by Gale A. Norton, Attorney General Dated 24th Day of 1998 Regarding Exceptions to the “Recommended Decision of Administrative Law Judge Ken K. Kirkpatrick Assessing Civil Penalty.”
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